
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 
 

    
  
 
                                                                                                                                                          

 
 

Revised 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, November 17, 2015 
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
            
   9:00 AM Call to Order  
   Approval of Minutes 

 November 10, 2015  
 
   Review Agenda 

 
Consent Agenda  

      
Commissioners 
a. Non-Bargaining Contribution to Employee Insurance Benefits for 2016 
b. Non-Bargaining General Increase of Wages for 2016 
District Court 
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 112 
Facilities 
d. Amended Contract w/Fire Systems West, Inc. for Fire Alarm System Inspections  
Fairgrounds  
e. Payment to Yoder, Inc., DBA Coffey Refrigeration for Ice Machine Replacement  
Human Services 
f. Contract w/Central Washington Comprehensive Mental Health  
Information Technologies   
g. Authorizing One World Telecommunications to Upgrade Internet Services    
Personnel 
h. Payment to Penser North America for Worker Compensation Administrator Services 
Planning 
i. Contract Amendment w/S Drummond, PLLC for Hearings Examiner Services 
Prosecuting Attorney 
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-1001, Dept. 117 
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117   
Public Works   
l. Payment Authorization to Cascade Software Systems for Program and On-Site Services 
m. Construction Plans for Nine Canyon 2 & Setting Bid Date  
n. Contract w/Apollo, Inc. for Sellards Road Project     
o. Purchase of Grader Blade Cutting Edges from Western States Equipment Company 
Sheriff 
p. Modification w/US Department of Energy for Law Enforcement Services 
q. Amended Agreement w/Correctional Healthcare Companies, Inc. for Health Care Services 
r. Contract w/A-Jacks Auto Services & Towing LLC for Vehicle Tows 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mf
Highlight

mf
Text Box
Click on highlighted area to view document in detail

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 
November 17, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

s. Line Item Transfer, fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 
t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121  
Superior Court 
u.  Proclamation for National Adoption Day  
Sustainable Development 
v. Letter to Dept of Energy re PILT 
Treasurer 
w. Agreement Extension w/Master’s Touch, LLC for Property Tax Statements    
x. Authority for Refunds/Cancellations/Corrections of Tax Rolls Outside of Ordinary Time 

Limits 
Washington State University Extension  
y. Interagency Agreement w/Washington State University Extension    
 
Scheduled Business 
 
Contract w/Tri-Cities Monitoring, Inc. for Court Security Services ~ K Ainsworth 
 
Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business    
 
       
   

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, November 10, 2015, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner Shon Small 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown;  Clerk Josie 

Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; Bob Woody, IT Department; GIS Manager 

Mary Phillips; Paul Schut, Commissioners’ Office; Larry Hueter, Project Manager; Clark Posey 

and Michelle Cooke, Planning; Assessor Bill Spencer; Dale Wilson, Building Dept.; Jeff Liner, 

Road Department; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Taylor Ranger, Auditor’s Office; Erhiza Rivera, 

Treasurer’s Office; Kyle Sullivan, Human Services;  Tara Symons, Mental Health Court Manager.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of October 27, 2015 (Special Board Meeting) and November 3, 2015 were approved.   

 

Review Agenda 

 

Mr. Sparks requested to add an executive session to discuss the performance of a public employee. 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “p”.    

Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Auditor  
a. Surplus of Personal Property  

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0106-101, Dept. 000  

Facilities  
c. Contract w/Spokane Roofing Company, LLC for Patch Roof Repair  

Human Services  
d. Amended Contract w/WA State Dept of Commerce for Emergency Solutions Grant  

e. Purchase of Bus Tickets & Passes from Ben Franklin Transit for Housing Programs  



 - 2 - 

f. Agreement w/Relias Learning, LLC for On-Line Training Module  

Information Technologies  
g. Purchase of Cisco Network Data Projects and Services for Kennewick Shop  

Office of Public Defense  
h. Amended Superior Court Public Defense Contract w/S Johnson for Adult Drug Court  

i. Amended Homicide Superior Court Public Defense Contract w/S Johnson  

Parks  
j. Amended Contract w/Buell Recreation LLC for Installation of Two Playgrounds  

Personnel  
k. Relationship w/WA Counties Risk Pool & Related Appointments and Designations  

Prosecuting Attorney  
l. Covenant Not to Sue  

Public Works  
m. Approval of Construction Plans of Summit View Phases 9 & 10  

n. Purchase of Six Body Vibrator Kits from Northend Truck Equipment, Inc.  

Sheriff  
o. Salary Request Statement  

Workforce Development Council  
p. Appointment of C Moser to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council  

 

Public Hearing Request on Mid-Year/Public Safety Budget Adjustments 

 

Paul Schut presented the following requests for budget adjustments to go to public hearing: 

 

1. Planning (the only Current Expense Fund request) in the amount of $176,980; they 

received a grant for the voluntary stewardship program.  The grant received was more than 

the request, but it would run through the next biennium and the remainder would be 

budgeted at that time.   

2. Three budget adjustments relating to the Justice Center Bond Fund to transfer necessary 

funds to pay off the bonds as scheduled (the money was already allotted for and it just 

needed to go into the correct fund): 

a. 1/10% CJ Jail-Juvenile Fund – $1,377,759 to Justice Center Bond Fund 

b. Rural Capital Fund - $6,065,500 to Justice Center Bond Fund 

c. Justice Center Bond Fund - $695,245 to Capital Projects Fund 

3. Park Development Fund – transferred $500,000 into the fund after year end but needed to 

budget $284,410 through the end of the biennium to cover projects. 

 

Ms. Smith Kelty gave a Powerpoint presentation update on the Public Safety Tax: 

 

 Phase 1 – space needs and defining programs - ongoing 

 

Chairman Delvin commented that he had been meeting with groups on the youth gang prevention 

program but they had not been very successful; Franklin County had interest but no money.  He 

said he wanted to do an RFP in Benton County and form a small group of individuals consisting 

of law enforcement, prosecuting attorney, schools, and community and let them decide where the 



 - 3 - 

money should be spent on the youth gang issues.  He said he would update the Board on that as it 

occurred.   

 

 Phase IV– Hired the Mental Health Manager; Superior Court Judge; Deputy Prosecuting 

Attorney and Legal Secretary; Legal Process Assistant for the Clerk (tbd) and OPD 

Contract Attorney (tbd); Sheriff deputy hired and 2 Inmate Processing Specialists, 4 Sheriff 

Deputies, 4 vehicles and Inmate Management System (all to be determined). 

 

Ms. Smith Kelty presented the following budget adjustments to go to public hearing for the Public 

Safety Tax Fund:   

 

1. Sheriff Custody - Public Safety Tax in the amount of $415,740 for wages, benefits and 

supplies for four custody officers. 

2. Adult-Juvenile Drug Court - Public Safety Tax in the amount of $146,073 for a 30 Person 

Adult Drug Court. Benton County money was going to Benton County individuals and 

Franklin County was paying for their own individuals and had not yet approved their final 

budget.   

3. Adult-Juvenile Drug Court - Public Safety Tax in the amount of $234,156 for a 25 Person 

Juvenile Drug Court. 

4. Juvenile - Public Safety Tax in the amount of $141,100 for Selective Aggressive Probation 

& Functional Family Therapy Programs. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to go to public hearing on November 24, 2015 for the 

proposed budget adjustments.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 

 

Commissioner Small commented that this program was not a turnkey operation and it had taken 

time to get these programs up and running and these funds were only allocated for criminal justice.  

Additionally, it had a sunset clause and if it was not approved, they would have to start cutting the 

programs.   

 

Planning Department Update 

 

Mike Shuttleworth, Michelle Cooke, and Clark Posey updated the Board on the Planning 

Department as follows: 

 Permit Activities 

 Hearings Examiner – new program had worked out very well; very precise and professional 

and it was now being held during the day; no complaints received 

 Voluntary Stewardship Program 

o County opted in; funded $270,000 from the Conservation Commission; first task 

was to identify watershed group; develop a work plan; submit to Conservation 

Commission; if approved it would implement the work plan; submit a progress 

report every 5 years 

 2017 Comprehensive Plan Update  

o Meeting with the cities monthly 

o Developing Countywide planning policies 

o Buildable Lands Analysis 



 - 4 - 

o UGA Update – Part of 2017 Update (might be bringing back request for consultant 

as part of that) 

o Critical Areas Ordinance Update 

 

Capital Projects Update 

 

Larry Hueter updated the Board on the following capital projects: 

 

 He would be asking for retainage release to G2 Construction on Courthouse upgrades on 

about December 22, 2015. 

 Justice Center Electronic Security System Retrofit (OPTO) - design development was 

complete and currently having a peer review; after that would go to bid and contract 

sometime in March, 2016 

 Mental Health Jail Expansion – near completion in design development; construction 

documents would be ready April, 2016 and hope to go to bid by June. Construction would 

last approximately one year - (believed cost estimate to be about $4.8 million) 

 Office of Public Defense/Executive Conference Room - relocate Assessor to the Annex 

building and that space would become the new OPD office.  WSU Extension office was 

also involved and that matter was being studied and they hoped to come up with 

recommendations to facilitate the new office but he did not have a time frame yet.  The 

OPD design was being completed and construction documents would be ready but they 

had to incorporate the other conditions to facilitate the move.   

 Prosecuting Attorney Space Analysis/Remodel – vacant undeveloped area on 2nd floor for 

Civil Department; was currently in design development phase and documents would be 

ready in mid-January.  They were also looking into where to store important files that were 

currently located there.   

 When OPD moved into Assessor’s office, they would use the current executive conference 

room space and executive conference room would be relocated upstairs.  He said he would 

be looking at the first schematic design this week.   

 

Benton County Noxious Weed Board 

 

Adam Fyall introduced Victor Reeve, the new Noxious Weed Board Coordinator.  Mr. Fyall said 

the Noxious Weed Board was now a completely separate entity from Benton County.  

 

Mr. Reeve said the transition would be challenging but he had only been there a month and would 

bring updates as they happened.  He said he was the only employee at this point but they were 

currently looking for another and hoped to have someone hired by January.   

 

Human Services Discussion 

 

Commissioner Small asked Kyle Sullivan and Ken Roughton (GCBH) to discuss the meeting 

regarding Human Services last week.   

 

Mr. Roughton said that in preparation for integration of behavioral health care that would begin 

next year, they were interested in setting up a working committee to form a plan. He said the long 



 - 5 - 

term goal was to have a system of care that was complete from one end to the other and addressed 

all needs; to create a behavioral health system that coordinated with the physical system.  

 

Mr. Sullivan said they met with the stakeholders that had a collective knowledge of the services in 

the community and everyone was willing and excited to get this group together.   

 

Mr. Roughton said he had arranged to have someone take the minutes at the meetings and they 

would be turned over so anyone could see the path and discussions they were having regarding the 

plan.  He said they hoped to have a plan together in 60 days.   

 

Chairman Delvin said he liked the approach and it was his understanding Franklin County 

Commissioners wanted to turn it over to their administrator so he asked to make sure the Franklin 

County Administrator was aware of the meetings so he could attend when he wanted, as well as 

the Benton County Administrator.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the letter as presented to the local mental 

health providers regarding serving on a short-term committee to develop a work plan for the future 

of Human Services.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Commissioner Small said the letter discussed inviting Franklin County for the presentation of the 

work plan.  He also commented that Benton County had invited Franklin County to two separate 

bi-county meetings on this subject, but they had declined.   

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

 

Jacki Lahtinen introduced Tara Symons, the new Mental Health Court Program Manager. 

 

Other Business 

 

Commissioner Beaver said he was being approached from groups about “.09 money”.  Mr. Sparks 

said it was the rural county capital funds and was for economic development for capital 

infrastructure.  When it was enacted the previous Boards agreed to divide the money and the ports 

and cities would submit projects for board approval.  Also, at the time it was enacted, the use of 

the funds were not clearly defined and Benton County used it to expand the jail and signed a debt 

participation agreement with the cities if that money went away they would be equal partners on 

repayment.   

 

He said as part of the budget adjustment requests, the money would be transferred to cover the 

debt on the jail that was previously dedicated and it would leave the future monies to be available 

for rural county economic development since it could no longer be used for criminal justice or 

jails.  He said they had not yet decided how to utilize the money but they wanted to come back to 

the Board with a plan, however, that is why the cities and ports had been asking for the money.   

 

 



 - 6 - 

Judge Swisher via/video conference said they had the 7th Judge on board and her office was located 

in Franklin County.  He thanked the Board and commented that all seven judges spent the majority 

of their time in Benton County.   

 

Chairman Delvin said he wanted to finalize the issue with Wyndham Publications and decide 

whether or to participate with the additional four pages. He said they were two separate agreements 

and they would get 250 books when it was done, no matter what.  Commissioner Beaver agreed to 

move forward with the second agreement.   

 

Chairman Delvin discussed the retail marijuana issue and said that Ryan Brown came up with the 

idea to zone them by distance.  Mr. Shuttleworth said there was currently only one in 

unincorporated Benton County that had a license and the other had not made application.  He said 

they could zone them for distance between facilities and other uses. 

 

The Board agreed to look at it further.   

 

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 10:30 a.m.   

 

Executive Session – Performance of Public Employee  

 

The Board went into executive session with David Sparks at 10:30 a.m. for up to 15 minutes to 

discuss the performance of a public employee.  Also present were Loretta Smith Kelty and Cami 

McKenzie.  The Board came out at 10:38 a.m.   No decisions were made in executive session.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve administration to hire Kyle Sullivan as 

Human Services Director and to negotiate the pay.  Additionally, to authorize the Chairman to sign 

a letter to Franklin County addressing this issue.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, 

the motion carried.   

 

Vouchers 

 

Check Date: 11/05/2015 

 

Payroll Checks 

Warrant #: 239062-239151 

Direct Deposit #: 108680-109261 

Total all funds: $2,080,234.23 

 

Payroll Deductions Transfers 

Taxes #: 10115111-101151114 

Total all funds: $1,800,326.10 

 

Payroll Deductions Warrants 

Warrant #: 130170-130182 

Total all funds: $368,186.45 

 



 - 7 - 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2015-792: Surplus of Personal Property  

2015-793: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0106-101, Dept. 000  

2015-794: Contract w/Spokane Roofing Company, LLC for Patch Roof Repair  

2015-795: Amended Contract w/WA State Dept of Commerce for Emergency Solutions  

  Grant  

2015-796: Purchase of Bus Tickets & Passes from Ben Franklin Transit for Housing  

  Programs  

2015-797: Agreement w/Relias Learning, LLC for On-Line Training Module  

2015-798: Purchase of Cisco Network Data Projects and Services for Kennewick Shop  

2015-799: Amended Superior Court Public Defense Contract w/S Johnson for Adult Drug 

 Court  

2015-800: Amended Homicide Superior Court Public Defense Contract w/S Johnson  

2015-801: Amended Contract w/Buell Recreation LLC for Installation of Two Playgrounds  

2015-802: Relationship w/WA Counties Risk Pool & Related Appointments and Designations  

2015-803: Agreement and Covenant Not to Sue  

2015-804: Approval of Construction Plans of Summit View Phases 9 & 10  

2015-805: Purchase of Six Body Vibrator Kits from Northend Truck Equipment, Inc.  

2015-806: Appointment of C Moser to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council  

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:40 

a.m.   

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



mf
Text Box
a. Non-Bargaining Contribution to Employee Insurance Benefits for 2016



mf
Text Box
b. Non-Bargaining General Increase of Wages for 2016





mf
Text Box
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 112





Orig: Facilities; Fire Systems West 
cc: Auditor; PA  C. McKenzie 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO PUBLIC WORKS 
CONTRACT WITH FIRE SYSTEMS WEST, INC.  

 

WHEREAS, per Resolution 2013-572 dated August 6, 2013 the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners entered into a contract with First Systems West, Inc. to provide annual fire alarm 
system inspections and as needed services at various Benton County locations; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2014-918 dated December 2, 2014 the parties entered into a First 
Amendment to reimburse the Contractor for the cost of filing inspection reports through Tegris 
Fire System; and 
 
WHEREAS, this second amendment is necessary to include an annual fire alarm inspection for 
the Benton County Animal Control Facility for year 2015 that was not part of the original 
contract for an additional amount of $125.00;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners 
hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached second amendment to public works contract 
to include an annual fire alarm inspection for the Benton County Animal Control Facility for 
year 2015 that was not part of the original contract for an additional amount of $125.00.   
 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 2015.   
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

            ___ 
Member 

 
       Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 
 Clerk of the Board        
 

 
 
 

 

mf
Text Box
d. Amended Contract w/Fire Systems West, Inc. for Fire Alarm System Inspections



Orig.: File - Facilities  C. McKenzie  
cc: Auditor; PA, Fire Systems West  

SECOND AMENDMENT TO PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 
 

THIS SECOND CONTRACT AMENDMENT (“SECOND AMENDMENT”) 
made and entered into this ____ day of ______________ 2015 by and between BENTON 
COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, 
Washington 99350 (hereinafter “COUNTY”) and Fire Systems West, Inc., a Washington 
State for profit corporation, with its principal offices at 922 N. Lake Road, Spokane Valley, 
WA  99212 (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"). 
 

The parties entered into a Public Works Contract per Resolution 2013-572 dated 
August 6, 2013 (the “CONTRACT”) to provide annual fire alarm system inspections and 
as needed services at various Benton County locations; AND 

 
Whereas, the parties entered into a FIRST AMENDMENT to the CONTRACT per 

Resolution 2014-918 dated December 2, 2014 to include reimbursement to the 
CONTRACTOR for the Tegris Fire System report filing fees; and 

 
Whereas, this SECOND AMENDMENT is necessary to include an annual fire 

alarm inspection for the Benton County Animal Control Facility for year 2015 that was not 
part of the original contract for an additional amount of $125.00; and 

 
The parties agree that all provisions of the CONTRACT remain in effect except as 

follows: 
 

1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  This section shall be amended and replaced in its 
entirety with the following:  

 
This CONTRACT consists of these terms and conditions and the following documents: 

 
a. Exhibit “A” - Scope of Work/Compensation 
b. Exhibit “A-1” - Scope of Work/Compensation (Animal Control Facility) 
c. Exhibit “B” – Washington State Prevailing Wages for Public Works Contracts 

 
3. SERVICES PROVIDED:  The second paragraph of this section shall be amended 

and replaced in its entirety with the following: 
 

The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide annual fire alarm system inspections at the 
Benton County locations provided in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “A-1”.  Additionally, 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide “as needed” programming changes and/or 
equipment changes or installations for work performed outside the annual inspection 
according to the hourly rate provided in Exhibit “A”.  CONTRACTOR agrees its 
performance with respect to the annual inspections set forth in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit 
“A-1” will be complete within thirty (30) days from the date it begins work on said 
inspections.  CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree that all work performed on an “as 
needed” basis will be completed upon a mutually agreeable time between the parties.  

 
5. COMPENSATION:  The first paragraph of this section shall be amended and 

replaced in its entirety with the following: 
 







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 11/10/15 
Subject: Yoder DBA 

Coffey 
Refrigeration 

Prepared by:       J. Donley  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __x___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _x____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
The ice machine at the Benton County Fairgrounds malfunctioned before the Benton Franklin Fair and 
Rodeo and could not be repaired.  Yoder, Inc. DBA Coffey Refrigeration replaced the ice maker. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve payment to Yoder, Inc. DBA Coffey Refrigeration. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
To be paid from Fairgrounds Operating Fund 0124101. No supplement requested. 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the requested payment 
 

mf
Text Box
e. Payment to Yoder, Inc., DBA Coffey Refrigeration for Ice Machine Replacement



cc: Auditor, Fairgrounds, P.Schut  J.Donley 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO YODER, INC. DBA 
COFFEY REFRIGERATION FOR EMERGENCY REPLACEMENT OF THE 
BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS ICE MACHINE IN THE SUNDOWNS 
KITCHEN  
 

WHEREAS, Benton County currently has a contract in place with Yoder, Inc. DBA Coffey 
Refrigeration for as needed kitchen repairs; and, 
 
WHEREAS, during a site inspection the ice machine in the kitchen of the Benton County 
Fairgrounds Sundowns Building failed; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Yoder, Inc. DBA Coffey Refrigeration was called in to repair the ice 
machine; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Yoder, Inc. DBA Coffey Refrigeration deemed the ice machine non-
repairable and recommended the purchase and installation of a new ice machine; and 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County’s current contract with Yoder, Inc. DBA Coffey Refrigeration 
does not include equipment purchasing; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  unfortunately due to the conclusion of several fairgrounds projects and prior 
event schedules limited time and research was available to find and price a new ice 
machine; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Fairgrounds Office Manager and the Finance Analyst deemed the 
purchase of an ice machine and emergency as it was necessary for the scheduled events; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, Yoder, Inc. DBA Coffey Refrigeration replaced the ice machine for a cost of 
Seven Thousand One-Hundred Eighty Dollars and Ninety-Six cents ($7,180.96) including 
W.S.S.T; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Benton County Commissioner hereby authorizes 
payment to Yoder, Inc. DBA Coffey Refrigeration in the amount of Seven Thousand One-
Hundred Eighty Dollars and Ninety-Six cents ($7,180.96) including W.S.S.T. 



cc: Auditor, Fairgrounds, P.Schut  J.Donley 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 





mf
Text Box
f. Contract w/Central Washington Comprehensive Mental Health













































mf
Text Box
g. Authorizing One World Telecommunications to Upgrade Internet Services







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 11/17/2015     
Subject: Authorizing 

Payment to 
Penser North 
America Inc. 

Prepared by:       L. Wingfield 
Reviewed by: L. Smith Kelty    

             

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda            

__X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Benton County Resolution 2012-560 authorized a personal service contract for our Self-Insured Workers’ 
Compensation Third Party Administrator Services and this resolution expired September 30, 2015.  Penser 
North America Inc has continued to be Benton County’s Third Party Administrator.  Services have already 
been rendered for Worker’s Compensation services that occurred during October and are occurring in 
November.  The Personnel Manager is working on a new personal services contract for Workers’ 
Compensation Third Party Administrator Services with an anticipated new contract in place December 1, 
2015.  The Personnel Manager is requesting authorization to pay Penser North America Inc. for the October 
and November services equating to $3,116.00. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
See above. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None, no supplement is required. 
 
 
 
 
 

mf
Text Box
h. Payment to Penser North America for Worker Compensation Administrator Services



 cc: Personnel, Auditor, Penser NorthAmerica, Inc.                                           Prepared by: L. Wingfield 
 

RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO PENSER NORTH AMERICA, INC. FOR 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATOR SERVICES RENDERED DURING 
THE MONTHS OF OCTOBER AND NOVEMBER 2015. 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-560, Benton County and Penser North America Inc. had a personal 
service contract for our Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Third Party Administrator Services 
that expired September 30, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, Penser North America Inc. has continued to be Benton County’s Third Party Administrator at 
the previously agreed upon rate of $1,558 per month; and 
 
WHEREAS, services have already been rendered for the Workers’ Compensation Services that occurred 
during October and November 2015 equating to $3,116; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Manager is working on a new personal services contract for Workers’ 
Compensation Third Party Administrator Services with an anticipated new contract in place December 1, 
2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Manager requests the Board of Benton County Commissioners authorize 
payment for those services which were rendered during October and November 2015; NOW, 
THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners authorize payment in the amount of 
$1,558 per month to Penser North America, Inc. for services rendered during the months of October and 
November 2015 equating to $3,116.  
 
 
Dated this __________________ day of ________________, 20___. 
 
 
 

________________________                
Chairman of the Board 

 
 

________________________ 
Member 

 
 

________________________ 
Member  

               
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 



mf
Text Box
i. Contract Amendment w/S Drummond, PLLC for Hearings Examiner Services







































AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date:

Subject:
Prepared by:
Reviewed by:

Tuesday, November 17,
2015

Line Item Transfer

M.Ault

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED

Execute Contract
Pass Resolution X

Pass Ordinance
Pass Motion
Other

Consent Agenda X
Public Hearing
1st Discussion
2nd Discussion
Other

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
We are requesting transferfunds to an underfunded line-item in accordance with Resolution 2014-113.

SUMMARY
A line item transfer in the amount of $3600 is needed to ensure this line-item (515.400.3192) stays current in
accordance with Resolution 2014-113.

RECOMMENDATION

Recommend that the resolution is passed allowing the line item transfer.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact / no supplement required.

MOTION

Consent Agenda.

mf
Text Box
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-1001, Dept. 117



RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OFCOMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS
WITHIN PUBLIC SAFETY TAX (3/10 OF 1%, DEPARTMENT NO. 117

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Dated this day of 2015

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County
Commissioners of Benton County,

Attest: Washington.
Clerk of the Board

Original:
Cc: PA. Auditor, LSK,



BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

DeptNbr: 117

Fund Nbr: 0148-101

TRANSFER TO:

Dept Name: Prosecuting Attorney

Fund Name: Public Safety Tax

TRANSFER FROM.

Exhibit "A"

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT || BASE SUB

$ 3,600.00 515.300

LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME

515.300. 4959 IT -Equipment Lease

TOTAL

Explanation:
Explanation: To fund anunderfunded line-item.

Prepared by: Margaret Ault

Approved Q|
M' lLul(

$3,600

Denied Qj

Chairman

Member

Member

3192 IT - Computer Hardware/Software

TOTAL

Date: 11/5/2015

Date:

EXHIBIT "A"

AMOUNT

$3,600.00

$3,600.00



AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date: Tuesday, November 17,
2015

Subject: Line Item Transfer
Prepared by: M.Ault
Reviewed by:

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED

Execute Contract Consent Agenda X
Public HearingPass Resolution X

Pass Ordinance 1st Discussion

Pass Motion 2nd Discussion

Other Other

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
We are requesting transfer funds to an underfunded line-item in accordance with Resolution 2014-113.

SUMMARY

A line item transfer in the amount of $400.00 is needed to ensure this line (515.330.1925) stays current in
accordance with Resolution 2014-113.

RECOMMENDATION

Recommend that the resolution is passed allowing the line item transfer.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact / no supplement required.

MOTION

Consent Agenda.

mf
Text Box
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117



RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS
WITHIN CURRENT EXPENSE FUND 0000.101, DEPARTMENT NO. 117

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Dated this day of , 2015

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County
Commissioners of Benton County,

Attest: Washington.
Clerk of the Board

Original:
Cc: PA. Auditor, LSK,



Dept Name:

Fund Name:

TRANSFER FROM:

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Dept Nbr:

Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER TO:

Prosecutor's Office 117

Current Expense 0000.101

BASE SUB

(6 digit)

LINE ITEM

(4 digit)

LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB

(6 digit)

LINE ITEM

(4 digit)

LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

515.300 1830 DPA $400 515.330 1925 Civil Overtime $ 400.00

TOTAL $0 $400 TOTAL $400

Explanation: Due to staffing issues, an employee was paid overtime to make sure deadlines were met. There was no overtime budget at
that time.

Prepared by:

Approved

Margaret Ault

•

Date: 03-Nov-2015

Denied I I Date:

Chairman

Member

Member



mf
Text Box
l. Payment Authorization to Cascade Software Systems for Program and On-Site Services





mf
Text Box
m. Construction Plans for Nine Canyon 2 & Setting Bid Date





mf
Text Box
n. Contract w/Apollo, Inc. for Sellards Road Project







mf
Text Box
o. Purchase of Grader Blade Cutting Edges from Western States Equipment Company



































 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Nov. 17, 2015       
Subject: Contract Modification 

w/ Dept. of Energy 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by:     

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Benton County and the U.S. Department of Energy entered into a contract for law enforcement service beginning of 
1993.   
 
Per Resolution 2013-268 and Contract No. DE-EM0002426, the Department of Energy solicited the Sheriff’s Office for 
a contract that would continue law enforcement services for the calendar year 2013 with four (4) one-year options.  
 
Per Resolution 2013-845, the Board approved a contract modification to contract DE-EM0002426 between Benton 
County and U.S. Department of Energy, which reduced the original contract amount for law enforcement services on 
the Hanford Site, and also approved for the first option year of 2014 in the amount of $901,255. 
  
Per Resolution 2014-951, the Department of Energy provided the Sheriff’s Office with a written Modification No. 0018 
of the current contract to incorporate FAR 52.203-17 – Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement to 
Inform Employees of Whistleblower Rights into Section I; as a result, updating the Table of Contents of the current 
Contract. 
 
Per Resolution 2015-029, the Board approved contract Modification No. 0019 to Contract DE-EM0002426, as the U.S. 
Department of Energy wished to exercise the second option for law enforcement services on the Hanford Site in the 
amount of $911,236.00 from January 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015.  
 
Attached is contract Modification No. 0023 to said contract, as the U.S. Department of Energy would like to 
provide $138,517.34 of FY16 funding for the period of November 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 and 
exercise the third option for law enforcement services on the Hanford Site in the amount of $851,977.00 
from January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Patrol Captain has reviewed the proposed Modification No. 0023 and recommends moving forward with 
the attached Contract Modification No. 0023 for law enforcement services on the Hanford Site in the amount 
of $851,977.00 for a period beginning January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
Ryan Lukson did not sign off on the modification as he did not review or approve the original contract back 
in 2013; however, he did review the modification and approved via email dated 11/10/15.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Revenue in the amount of $851,977.00 for law enforcement services on the Hanford site for 2016. 
 
MOTION 
Consent Agenda  

mf
Text Box
p. Modification w/US Department of Energy for Law Enforcement Services



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF CONTRACT DE-EM0002426 MODIFICATION NO. 0023 
BETWEEN U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY AND THE BENTON COUNTY 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County and the U.S. Department of Energy have entered into a Contract 
for law enforcement service beginning of 1993; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2013-268 and Contract Number DE-EM0002426, the Department 
of Energy solicited the Sheriff’s Office for a contract that would continue law enforcement 
services for the calendar year 2013 with four one-year options; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2013-845 dated November 26, 2013, the Board approved Contact 
Modification No. 0008 to Contract DE-EM0002426 reducing the Scope of Work and exercising 
the first option for law enforcement services on Hanford Site in the amount of $901,255 from 
January 1, 2014 – January 31, 2014; and   
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2014-951 dated December 2, 2014, the Board approved Contract 
Modification No. 0018 as the U.S. Department of Energy wished to incorporate FAR 52.203-17, 
Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement to Inform Employees of 
Whistleblower Rights to Section I and updating the Table of Content and page numbers; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2015-029 dated January 6, 2015, the Board approved Contract 
Modification No. 0019 as the U.S. Department of Energy wished to exercise the second option 
for law enforcement services on Hanford Site in the amount of $911,236.00 from January 1, 
2015 – December 31, 2015; and    
 
WHEREAS, the attached Contract DE-EM0002426 Modification No. 0023 is necessary as the 
U.S. Department of Energy would like to provide $138,517.34 of FY16 funding for the period of 
November 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 and exercise the third option for law enforcement 
services on the Hanford Site in the amount of $851,977.00 from January 1, 2016 – December 31, 
2016; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Patrol Captain has reviewed the proposed modification and recommends 
moving forward with the attached Contract Modification No. 0023; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners approves the attached 
Contract DE-EM0002426 Modification 0023 between Benton County and U.S. Department of 
Energy, providing $138,517.34 of FY16 funding for the period of November 1, 2015 through 
December 31, 2015, and exercise the third option for law enforcement services on the Hanford 
Site in the amount of $851,977.00 for a period beginning January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016; 
and  

Original: Sheriff’s Office                                                                                                                                                  L. Small 
CC: Auditor; S. Araiza; DOE 

 



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman of the Board to 
sign the attached Modification No. 0023 to Contract DE-EM0002426. 
 
 
 
Dated this________day of ___________, 2015 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 

          
             

            Member                                          
           

 
             

                   Member 
Attest:                        

Clerk of the Board                                                      Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 

Original: Sheriff’s Office                                                                                                                                                  L. Small 
CC: Auditor; S. Araiza; DOE 

 



 ___________

(x)

x DE-EM0002426

copies of the amendment; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the offer submitted ; or (c) By 

separate letter or telegram which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers.  FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT TO BE RECEIVED AT 

THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER.  If by 

virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted , such change may be made by telegram or letter, provided each telegram or letter makes 

reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified.

KENNEWICK WA 993362341

083738997

BENTON, COUNTY OF

Richland WA 99352

00601

P.O. Box 550, MSIN A7-80
Richland Operations Office
U.S. Department of Energy
Richland Operations Office

16EM00016310/28/20150023

 31

13. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO MODIFICATION OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS.  IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14.

12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA (If required)

is not extended.is extended, 

Items 8 and 15, and returning

Offers must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended , by one of the following methods: (a) By completing

The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in Item 14.  The hour and date specified for receipt of Offers

11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS

FACILITY CODE CODE 

10B. DATED (SEE ITEM 13)

10A. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO.

9B. DATED (SEE ITEM 11)

9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.

CODE 

8. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR (No., street, county, State and ZIP Code)

7. ADMINISTERED BY (If other than Item 6)CODE 6. ISSUED BY

PAGE   OF  PAGES

4. REQUISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO.3. EFFECTIVE DATE2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION  NO. 5. PROJECT NO. (If applicable)

1. CONTRACT ID CODE
AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT

12/20/2012

Attn: JULIE THOMPSON
7122 W. OKANOGAN PLACE
BLDG. A

Net Increase: $138,517.34

CHECK ONE A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO: (Specify authority)  THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE CONTRACT

B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes in paying office, 

C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:

D. OTHER (Specify type of modification and authority)

 appropriation date, etc.)  SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43.103(b).

E. IMPORTANT: Contractor is not, is required to sign this document and return    __________________ copies to the issuing office.

 ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.

FAR 52.217-8, Option to Extend Services/FAR 52.232-18, Availability of Funds

x

14. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION (Organized by UCF section headings, including solicitation/contract subject matter where feasible.)

X

 0

Tax ID Number:  91-6001296

DUNS Number:  083738997

Law and Traffic Enforcement Services for the Hanford Site, Richland, Washington

Modification 0023 provides $138,517.34 of FY16 funding and exercises the third option year,

Line Item 00004 for 2016 Law and Traffic Enforcement services through December 31, 2016.

Contract clause DOE-B-1001, Deliverable Requirements is updated to reflect the exercise of

Line Item 00004.  Attachment 2, Wage Determination WD 05-2570, Revision 18, dated July 8,

2015, is attached.

The period of performance for the third option year is January 1, 2016, through December

Continued ...

16A. NAME  AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or print)15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)

15C. DATE SIGNED 16B. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 15B. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR 16C. DATE SIGNED

(Signature of person authorized to sign) (Signature of Contracting Officer)

Linda K. Jarnagin

STANDARD FORM 30 (REV. 10-83)

Prescribed by GSA

FAR (48 CFR) 53.243

NSN 7540-01-152-8070

Previous edition unusable

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 9 A or 10A, as heretofore changed, remains unchanged and in full force and effect .

10/28/2015
Signature on File

Jerome Delvin, Chairman 
Benton  County Commissioner 



ITEM NO. SUPPLIES/SERVICES QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

NAME OF OFFEROR OR CONTRACTOR

 2  3
CONTINUATION SHEET

REFERENCE NO. OF DOCUMENT BEING CONTINUED PAGE OF

BENTON, COUNTY OF

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)

DE-EM0002426/0023

        31, 2016. Total funding provided is for the

        period of November 1, 2015 through December 31,

        2015. The total amount for the contract is

        increased to $3,647,565.00. Total funding

        provided is increased by $138,517.34 to

        $2,777,232.60.

         LIST OF CHANGES:

        Reason for Modification : Exercise an Option

        Period Of Performance End Date changed from

        2015-12-31 to 2016-12-31

        New Total Amount for this Version: $851,977.00

        New Total Amount for this Award: $4,539,796.00

        Obligated Amount for this Modification:

        $138,517.34

        New Total Obligated Amount for this Award:

        $2,777,232.60

         CHANGES FOR LINE ITEM NUMBER:  4

        Obligated Amount for this modification:

        $138,517.34

        Exercised option

        NEW DELIVERY LOCATION RECORD:

        Quantity: 0

        Amount: $851,977.00

        Shipping Address:

              Richland Operations Office

        U.S. Department of Energy

        Richland Operations Office

        P.O. Box 550, MSIN A7-80

        Richland WA 99352

        Mark For Address:

        NEW ACCOUNTING CODE ADDED:

        Account code:

        Fund 01250

        Appr Year 2016

        Allottee 34

        Reporting Entity 421601

        Object Class 25105

        Program 1111148

        Project 0001523

        WFO 0000000

        Local Use 0000000

        Quantity: 0

        Amount: $138,517.34

        Continued ...

NSN 7540-01-152-8067 OPTIONAL FORM 336 (4-86)

Sponsored by GSA

FAR (48 CFR) 53.110



ITEM NO. SUPPLIES/SERVICES QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

NAME OF OFFEROR OR CONTRACTOR

 3  3
CONTINUATION SHEET

REFERENCE NO. OF DOCUMENT BEING CONTINUED PAGE OF

BENTON, COUNTY OF

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)

DE-EM0002426/0023

        Delivery Location Code: 00601

        Richland Operations Office

        U.S. Department of Energy

        Richland Operations Office

        P.O. Box 550, MSIN A7-80

        Richland WA 99352 US

        Payment:

             OR for Richland

             U.S. Department of Energy

             Oak Ridge Financial Service Center

             P.O. Box 4307

             Oak Ridge TN 37831

        Fund: 01250 Appr Year: 2016 Allottee: 34 Report

        Entity: 421601 Object Class: 25105 Program:

        1111148 Project: 0001523 WFO: 0000000 Local Use:

        0000000

        FOB: Destination

        Period of Performance: 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2016

        Change Item 00004 to read as follows(amount shown

        is the total amount):

00004   Third Option Year - 2016                                                         851,977.00

        Line item value is:$851,977.00

        Incrementally Funded Amount: $138,517.34

NSN 7540-01-152-8067 OPTIONAL FORM 336 (4-86)

Sponsored by GSA

FAR (48 CFR) 53.110



Law and Traffic Enforcement 
DE-EM0002426-0023 

 

 
Page 6 of 93 

Section B - Supplies or Services/Prices 
 
 
DOE-B-1001 Deliverable Requirements - Firm Fixed Price (Tailored) 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for providing law and traffic enforcement services as described in 
Section C, Statement of Work (SOW), at the facilities specified in the DOE-F-1002. 
 
This contract is a fixed price contract with a base year of January 1, 2013, through December 31, 2013, and 
four one-year option years of January 1 through December 31. 
 
 

Item Description Unit Amount 
   
00001 Base Year – 2013 

January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 
Lump Sum* $ 983,097 

    
00002 First Option Year – 2014 

January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 
Lump Sum* $ 901,255 

    
00003 Second Option Year – 2015 

January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 
Lump Sum* $ 911,236 

    
00004 Third Option Year – 2016 

January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 
Lump Sum* $ 851,977 

    
00005 Fourth Option Year – 2017 

January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017 
Lump Sum* $ 892,231 

    
 Total of All Periods: $ 4,539,796 

 
 
*Payments will be made in twelve (12) equal monthly payments. 
 
The Item Numbers ordered to date are 00001 – 00004. 
 
The Firm-Fixed-Price of the items ordered to date is $3,647,565.   
 
(End of clause) 



Wage Determination 05-2570.txt
WD 05-2570 (Rev.-18) was first posted on www.wdol.gov on 07/14/2015
************************************************************************************
REGISTER OF WAGE DETERMINATIONS UNDER  |        U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
       THE SERVICE CONTRACT ACT        |  EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS ADMINISTRATION
By direction of the Secretary of Labor |         WAGE AND HOUR DIVISION
                                       |         WASHINGTON D.C.  20210
                                       |
                                       |
                                       |
                                       | Wage Determination No.: 2005-2570
Daniel W. Simms          Division of   |           Revision No.: 18
Director            Wage Determinations|       Date Of Revision: 07/08/2015
_______________________________________|____________________________________________
Note: Executive Order (EO) 13658 establishes an hourly minimum wage of $10.10
for 2015 that applies to all contracts subject to the Service Contract Act for
which the solicitation is issued on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract
is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any
classification listed on this wage determination at least $10.10 (or the
applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for
all hours spent performing on the contract. The EO minimum wage rate will be
adjusted annually.  Additional information on contractor requirements and
worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.
____________________________________________________________________________________
States: Oregon, Washington

Area: Oregon Counties of Baker, Grant, Harney, Malheur, Morrow, Umatilla,
Union, Wallowa, Wheeler
Washington Counties of Benton, Franklin, Walla Walla, Yakima
____________________________________________________________________________________
          **Fringe Benefits Required Follow the Occupational Listing**
OCCUPATION CODE - TITLE                                  FOOTNOTE               RATE
01000 - Administrative Support And Clerical Occupations
  01011 - Accounting Clerk I                                                   13.61
  01012 - Accounting Clerk II                                                  15.27
  01013 - Accounting Clerk III                                                 17.08
  01020 - Administrative Assistant                                             22.41
  01040 - Court Reporter                                                       18.59
  01051 - Data Entry Operator I                                                13.38
  01052 - Data Entry Operator II                                               14.60
  01060 - Dispatcher, Motor Vehicle                                            18.77
  01070 - Document Preparation Clerk                                           12.94
  01090 - Duplicating Machine Operator                                         12.94
  01111 - General Clerk I                                                      13.10
  01112 - General Clerk II                                                     14.30
  01113 - General Clerk III                                                    16.05
  01120 - Housing Referral Assistant                                           20.52
  01141 - Messenger Courier                                                    11.95
  01191 - Order Clerk I                                                        12.44
  01192 - Order Clerk II                                                       13.57
  01261 - Personnel Assistant (Employment) I                                   17.21
  01262 - Personnel Assistant (Employment) II                                  19.25
  01263 - Personnel Assistant (Employment) III                                 21.47
  01270 - Production Control Clerk                                             26.54
  01280 - Receptionist                                                         12.83
  01290 - Rental Clerk                                                         15.00
  01300 - Scheduler, Maintenance                                               16.45
  01311 - Secretary I                                                          16.45
  01312 - Secretary II                                                         18.40
  01313 - Secretary III                                                        20.52
  01320 - Service Order Dispatcher                                             18.84
  01410 - Supply Technician                                                    22.80
  01420 - Survey Worker                                                        17.33
  01531 - Travel Clerk I                                                       14.84

Page 1



Wage Determination 05-2570.txt
  01532 - Travel Clerk II                                                      15.95
  01533 - Travel Clerk III                                                     17.09
  01611 - Word Processor I                                                     15.07
  01612 - Word Processor II                                                    16.91
  01613 - Word Processor III                                                   18.91
05000 - Automotive Service Occupations
  05005 - Automobile Body Repairer, Fiberglass                                 18.71
  05010 - Automotive  Electrician                                              18.82
  05040 - Automotive Glass Installer                                           17.82
  05070 - Automotive Worker                                                    17.82
  05110 - Mobile Equipment Servicer                                            15.82
  05130 - Motor Equipment Metal Mechanic                                       19.80
  05160 - Motor Equipment Metal Worker                                         17.82
  05190 - Motor Vehicle Mechanic                                               19.80
  05220 - Motor Vehicle Mechanic Helper                                        14.82
  05250 - Motor Vehicle Upholstery Worker                                      16.81
  05280 - Motor Vehicle Wrecker                                                17.82
  05310 - Painter, Automotive                                                  18.82
  05340 - Radiator Repair Specialist                                           17.82
  05370 - Tire Repairer                                                        14.44
  05400 - Transmission Repair Specialist                                       19.80
07000 - Food Preparation And Service Occupations
  07010 - Baker                                                                17.23
  07041 - Cook I                                                               13.97
  07042 - Cook II                                                              15.66
  07070 - Dishwasher                                                            9.89
  07130 - Food Service Worker                                                  10.88
  07210 - Meat Cutter                                                          17.51
  07260 - Waiter/Waitress                                                      12.54
09000 - Furniture Maintenance And Repair Occupations
  09010 - Electrostatic Spray Painter                                          20.54
  09040 - Furniture Handler                                                    13.45
  09080 - Furniture Refinisher                                                 20.54
  09090 - Furniture Refinisher Helper                                          16.17
  09110 - Furniture Repairer, Minor                                            18.34
  09130 - Upholsterer                                                          20.54
11000 - General Services And Support Occupations
  11030 - Cleaner, Vehicles                                                    11.95
  11060 - Elevator Operator                                                    11.95
  11090 - Gardener                                                             16.89
  11122 - Housekeeping Aide                                                    13.41
  11150 - Janitor                                                              16.03
  11210 - Laborer, Grounds Maintenance                                         12.77
  11240 - Maid or Houseman                                                      9.88
  11260 - Pruner                                                               11.97
  11270 - Tractor Operator                                                     15.28
  11330 - Trail Maintenance Worker                                             12.77
  11360 - Window Cleaner                                                       18.02
12000 - Health Occupations
  12010 - Ambulance Driver                                                     16.83
  12011 - Breath Alcohol Technician                                            17.22
  12012 - Certified Occupational Therapist Assistant                           23.78
  12015 - Certified Physical Therapist Assistant                               24.27
  12020 - Dental Assistant                                                     16.96
  12025 - Dental Hygienist                                                     43.92
  12030 - EKG Technician                                                       26.27
  12035 - Electroneurodiagnostic Technologist                                  26.27
  12040 - Emergency Medical Technician                                         16.83
  12071 - Licensed Practical Nurse I                                           15.49
  12072 - Licensed Practical Nurse II                                          17.33
  12073 - Licensed Practical Nurse III                                         19.33
  12100 - Medical Assistant                                                    14.85
  12130 - Medical Laboratory Technician                                        16.01

Page 2



Wage Determination 05-2570.txt
  12160 - Medical Record Clerk                                                 13.99
  12190 - Medical Record Technician                                            15.65
  12195 - Medical Transcriptionist                                             17.58
  12210 - Nuclear Medicine Technologist                                        36.58
  12221 - Nursing Assistant I                                                  10.06
  12222 - Nursing Assistant II                                                 11.31
  12223 - Nursing Assistant III                                                12.34
  12224 - Nursing Assistant IV                                                 13.85
  12235 - Optical Dispenser                                                    17.33
  12236 - Optical Technician                                                   16.27
  12250 - Pharmacy Technician                                                  15.67
  12280 - Phlebotomist                                                         13.85
  12305 - Radiologic Technologist                                              26.57
  12311 - Registered Nurse I                                                   29.51
  12312 - Registered Nurse II                                                  36.10
  12313 - Registered Nurse II, Specialist                                      36.10
  12314 - Registered Nurse III                                                 43.68
  12315 - Registered Nurse III, Anesthetist                                    43.68
  12316 - Registered Nurse IV                                                  52.36
  12317 - Scheduler (Drug and Alcohol Testing)                                 21.34
13000 - Information And Arts Occupations
  13011 - Exhibits Specialist I                                                20.38
  13012 - Exhibits Specialist II                                               25.26
  13013 - Exhibits Specialist III                                              30.90
  13041 - Illustrator I                                                        20.38
  13042 - Illustrator II                                                       25.26
  13043 - Illustrator III                                                      30.90
  13047 - Librarian                                                            27.96
  13050 - Library Aide/Clerk                                                   14.18
  13054 - Library Information Technology Systems                               25.26
  Administrator
  13058 - Library Technician                                                   18.10
  13061 - Media Specialist I                                                   18.22
  13062 - Media Specialist II                                                  20.40
  13063 - Media Specialist III                                                 22.73
  13071 - Photographer I                                                       16.41
  13072 - Photographer II                                                      18.36
  13073 - Photographer III                                                     22.74
  13074 - Photographer IV                                                      27.81
  13075 - Photographer V                                                       33.65
  13110 - Video Teleconference Technician                                      17.69
14000 - Information Technology Occupations
  14041 - Computer Operator I                                                  19.45
  14042 - Computer Operator II                                                 21.76
  14043 - Computer Operator III                                                24.28
  14044 - Computer Operator IV                                                 26.98
  14045 - Computer Operator V                                                  29.87
  14071 - Computer Programmer I                          (see 1)               22.85
  14072 - Computer Programmer II                         (see 1)
  14073 - Computer Programmer III                        (see 1)
  14074 - Computer Programmer IV                         (see 1)
  14101 - Computer Systems Analyst I                     (see 1)
  14102 - Computer Systems Analyst II                    (see 1)
  14103 - Computer Systems Analyst III                   (see 1)
  14150 - Peripheral Equipment Operator                                        19.45
  14160 - Personal Computer Support Technician                                 26.98
15000 - Instructional Occupations
  15010 - Aircrew Training Devices Instructor (Non-Rated)                      30.62
  15020 - Aircrew Training Devices Instructor (Rated)                          37.04
  15030 - Air Crew Training Devices Instructor (Pilot)                         44.39
  15050 - Computer Based Training Specialist / Instructor                      30.62
  15060 - Educational Technologist                                             37.11
  15070 - Flight Instructor (Pilot)                                            44.39

Page 3



Wage Determination 05-2570.txt
  15080 - Graphic Artist                                                       21.49
  15090 - Technical Instructor                                                 28.36
  15095 - Technical Instructor/Course Developer                                32.54
  15110 - Test Proctor                                                         21.49
  15120 - Tutor                                                                21.49
16000 - Laundry, Dry-Cleaning, Pressing And Related Occupations
  16010 - Assembler                                                            10.90
  16030 - Counter Attendant                                                    10.90
  16040 - Dry Cleaner                                                          13.76
  16070 - Finisher, Flatwork, Machine                                          10.90
  16090 - Presser, Hand                                                        10.90
  16110 - Presser, Machine, Drycleaning                                        10.90
  16130 - Presser, Machine, Shirts                                             10.90
  16160 - Presser, Machine, Wearing Apparel, Laundry                           10.90
  16190 - Sewing Machine Operator                                              14.71
  16220 - Tailor                                                               15.67
  16250 - Washer, Machine                                                      11.84
19000 - Machine Tool Operation And Repair Occupations
  19010 - Machine-Tool Operator (Tool Room)                                    23.95
  19040 - Tool And Die Maker                                                   29.01
21000 - Materials Handling And Packing Occupations
  21020 - Forklift Operator                                                    14.88
  21030 - Material Coordinator                                                 26.54
  21040 - Material Expediter                                                   26.54
  21050 - Material Handling Laborer                                            13.19
  21071 - Order Filler                                                         13.22
  21080 - Production Line Worker (Food Processing)                             14.88
  21110 - Shipping Packer                                                      13.22
  21130 - Shipping/Receiving Clerk                                             13.22
  21140 - Store Worker I                                                       11.35
  21150 - Stock Clerk                                                          16.17
  21210 - Tools And Parts Attendant                                            14.88
  21410 - Warehouse Specialist                                                 14.88
23000 - Mechanics And Maintenance And Repair Occupations
  23010 - Aerospace Structural Welder                                          25.78
  23021 - Aircraft Mechanic I                                                  24.50
  23022 - Aircraft Mechanic II                                                 25.78
  23023 - Aircraft Mechanic III                                                27.31
  23040 - Aircraft Mechanic Helper                                             17.80
  23050 - Aircraft, Painter                                                    22.96
  23060 - Aircraft Servicer                                                    20.21
  23080 - Aircraft Worker                                                      21.45
  23110 - Appliance Mechanic                                                   22.36
  23120 - Bicycle Repairer                                                     14.44
  23125 - Cable Splicer                                                        34.15
  23130 - Carpenter, Maintenance                                               22.89
  23140 - Carpet Layer                                                         20.37
  23160 - Electrician, Maintenance                                             30.09
  23181 - Electronics Technician Maintenance I                                 26.22
  23182 - Electronics Technician Maintenance II                                28.08
  23183 - Electronics Technician Maintenance III                               29.95
  23260 - Fabric Worker                                                        20.20
  23290 - Fire Alarm System Mechanic                                           24.83
  23310 - Fire Extinguisher Repairer                                           18.63
  23311 - Fuel Distribution System Mechanic                                    25.43
  23312 - Fuel Distribution System Operator                                    19.09
  23370 - General Maintenance Worker                                           19.13
  23380 - Ground Support Equipment Mechanic                                    24.50
  23381 - Ground Support Equipment Servicer                                    20.21
  23382 - Ground Support Equipment Worker                                      21.45
  23391 - Gunsmith I                                                           18.63
  23392 - Gunsmith II                                                          21.74
  23393 - Gunsmith III                                                         24.83

Page 4



Wage Determination 05-2570.txt
  23410 - Heating, Ventilation And Air-Conditioning                            21.57
  Mechanic
  23411 - Heating, Ventilation And Air Contditioning                           22.70
  Mechanic (Research Facility)
  23430 - Heavy Equipment Mechanic                                             25.42
  23440 - Heavy Equipment Operator                                             23.61
  23460 - Instrument Mechanic                                                  26.61
  23465 - Laboratory/Shelter Mechanic                                          23.29
  23470 - Laborer                                                              12.28
  23510 - Locksmith                                                            20.45
  23530 - Machinery Maintenance Mechanic                                       25.56
  23550 - Machinist, Maintenance                                               22.78
  23580 - Maintenance Trades Helper                                            16.87
  23591 - Metrology Technician I                                               26.61
  23592 - Metrology Technician II                                              28.00
  23593 - Metrology Technician III                                             29.66
  23640 - Millwright                                                           30.04
  23710 - Office Appliance Repairer                                            22.32
  23760 - Painter, Maintenance                                                 19.88
  23790 - Pipefitter, Maintenance                                              29.30
  23810 - Plumber, Maintenance                                                 27.84
  23820 - Pneudraulic Systems Mechanic                                         24.83
  23850 - Rigger                                                               24.83
  23870 - Scale Mechanic                                                       21.74
  23890 - Sheet-Metal Worker, Maintenance                                      25.26
  23910 - Small Engine Mechanic                                                19.59
  23931 - Telecommunications Mechanic I                                        25.46
  23932 - Telecommunications Mechanic II                                       26.79
  23950 - Telephone Lineman                                                    23.94
  23960 - Welder, Combination, Maintenance                                     21.15
  23965 - Well Driller                                                         24.83
  23970 - Woodcraft Worker                                                     24.83
  23980 - Woodworker                                                           18.63
24000 - Personal Needs Occupations
  24570 - Child Care Attendant                                                 10.04
  24580 - Child Care Center Clerk                                              13.63
  24610 - Chore Aide                                                           11.35
  24620 - Family Readiness And Support Services                                13.44
  Coordinator
  24630 - Homemaker                                                            14.44
25000 - Plant And System Operations Occupations
  25010 - Boiler Tender                                                        27.31
  25040 - Sewage Plant Operator                                                23.29
  25070 - Stationary Engineer                                                  27.31
  25190 - Ventilation Equipment Tender                                         20.58
  25210 - Water Treatment Plant Operator                                       23.29
27000 - Protective Service Occupations
  27004 - Alarm Monitor                                                        22.01
  27007 - Baggage Inspector                                                    17.55
  27008 - Corrections Officer                                                  23.96
  27010 - Court Security Officer                                               25.24
  27030 - Detection Dog Handler                                                22.01
  27040 - Detention Officer                                                    23.96
  27070 - Firefighter                                                          25.75
  27101 - Guard I                                                              17.55
  27102 - Guard II                                                             22.01
  27131 - Police Officer I                                                     28.67
  27132 - Police Officer II                                                    31.84
28000 - Recreation Occupations
  28041 - Carnival Equipment Operator                                          15.64
  28042 - Carnival Equipment Repairer                                          16.71
  28043 - Carnival Equpment Worker                                             11.72
  28210 - Gate Attendant/Gate Tender                                           14.01

Page 5



Wage Determination 05-2570.txt
  28310 - Lifeguard                                                            11.90
  28350 - Park Attendant (Aide)                                                15.66
  28510 - Recreation Aide/Health Facility Attendant                            11.35
  28515 - Recreation Specialist                                                19.27
  28630 - Sports Official                                                      12.47
  28690 - Swimming Pool Operator                                               22.22
29000 - Stevedoring/Longshoremen Occupational Services
  29010 - Blocker And Bracer                                                   27.81
  29020 - Hatch Tender                                                         27.81
  29030 - Line Handler                                                         27.81
  29041 - Stevedore I                                                          25.82
  29042 - Stevedore II                                                         29.78
30000 - Technical Occupations
  30010 - Air Traffic Control Specialist, Center (HFO)   (see 2)               35.77
  30011 - Air Traffic Control Specialist, Station (HFO)  (see 2)               24.66
  30012 - Air Traffic Control Specialist, Terminal (HFO) (see 2)               27.16
  30021 - Archeological Technician I                                           16.14
  30022 - Archeological Technician II                                          18.43
  30023 - Archeological Technician III                                         24.07
  30030 - Cartographic Technician                                              25.48
  30040 - Civil Engineering Technician                                         24.78
  30061 - Drafter/CAD Operator I                                               16.14
  30062 - Drafter/CAD Operator II                                              18.43
  30063 - Drafter/CAD Operator III                                             20.55
  30064 - Drafter/CAD Operator IV                                              24.77
  30081 - Engineering Technician I                                             16.35
  30082 - Engineering Technician II                                            18.35
  30083 - Engineering Technician III                                           20.53
  30084 - Engineering Technician IV                                            25.43
  30085 - Engineering Technician V                                             31.11
  30086 - Engineering Technician VI                                            38.46
  30090 - Environmental Technician                                             22.34
  30210 - Laboratory Technician                                                23.90
  30240 - Mathematical Technician                                              22.36
  30361 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant I                                          17.77
  30362 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant II                                         22.02
  30363 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant III                                        26.94
  30364 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant IV                                         32.59
  30390 - Photo-Optics Technician                                              22.36
  30461 - Technical Writer I                                                   22.20
  30462 - Technical Writer II                                                  27.15
  30463 - Technical Writer III                                                 32.85
  30491 - Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Technician I                               22.74
  30492 - Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Technician II                              27.51
  30493 - Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Technician III                             32.97
  30494 - Unexploded (UXO) Safety Escort                                       22.74
  30495 - Unexploded (UXO) Sweep Personnel                                     22.74
  30620 - Weather Observer, Combined Upper Air Or        (see 2)               20.55
  Surface Programs
  30621 - Weather Observer, Senior                       (see 2)               20.75
31000 - Transportation/Mobile Equipment Operation Occupations
  31020 - Bus Aide                                                             11.43
  31030 - Bus Driver                                                           16.99
  31043 - Driver Courier                                                       12.52
  31260 - Parking and Lot Attendant                                            10.69
  31290 - Shuttle Bus Driver                                                   13.65
  31310 - Taxi Driver                                                          11.88
  31361 - Truckdriver, Light                                                   13.65
  31362 - Truckdriver, Medium                                                  14.80
  31363 - Truckdriver, Heavy                                                   21.02
  31364 - Truckdriver, Tractor-Trailer                                         21.02
99000 - Miscellaneous Occupations
  99030 - Cashier                                                              10.64

Page 6



Wage Determination 05-2570.txt
  99050 - Desk Clerk                                                            9.81
  99095 - Embalmer                                                             24.57
  99251 - Laboratory Animal Caretaker I                                        12.19
  99252 - Laboratory Animal Caretaker II                                       13.28
  99310 - Mortician                                                            24.57
  99410 - Pest Controller                                                      21.01
  99510 - Photofinishing Worker                                                11.95
  99710 - Recycling Laborer                                                    16.23
  99711 - Recycling Specialist                                                 19.82
  99730 - Refuse Collector                                                     14.49
  99810 - Sales Clerk                                                          12.30
  99820 - School Crossing Guard                                                14.43
  99830 - Survey Party Chief                                                   23.63
  99831 - Surveying Aide                                                       14.85
  99832 - Surveying Technician                                                 20.32
  99840 - Vending Machine Attendant                                            16.41
  99841 - Vending Machine Repairer                                             20.45
  99842 - Vending Machine Repairer Helper                                      16.41

____________________________________________________________________________________

ALL OCCUPATIONS LISTED ABOVE RECEIVE THE FOLLOWING BENEFITS:

HEALTH & WELFARE: Life, accident, and health insurance plans, sick leave, pension
plans, civic and personal leave, severance pay, and savings and thrift plans.
Minimum employer contributions costing an average of $4.27 per hour computed on the
basis of all hours worked by service employees employed on the contract.

VACATION: 2 weeks paid vacation after 1 year of service with a contractor or
successor; 3 weeks after 5 years, 4 weeks after 10 years, and 5 weeks after 20 
years.
  Length of service includes the whole span of continuous service with the present
contractor or successor, wherever employed, and with the predecessor contractors in
the performance of similar work at the same Federal facility.  (Reg. 29 CFR 4.173)

HOLIDAYS: A minimum of ten paid holidays per year, New Year's Day, Martin Luther
King Jr's Birthday, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor
Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.  (A
contractor may substitute for any of the named holidays another day off with pay in
accordance with a plan communicated to the employees involved.)  (See 29 CFR 4174)

THE OCCUPATIONS WHICH HAVE NUMBERED FOOTNOTES IN PARENTHESES RECEIVE THE FOLLOWING:

1)  Does not apply to employees employed in a bona fide executive, administrative,
or professional capacity as defined and delineated in 29 CFR 541.  (See CFR 4.156)

2)  AIR TRAFFIC CONTROLLERS AND WEATHER OBSERVERS - NIGHT PAY & SUNDAY PAY:  If you
work at night as part of a regular tour of duty, you will earn a night differential
and receive an additional 10% of basic pay for any hours worked between 6pm and 6am.
 If you are a full-time employed (40 hours a week) and Sunday is part of your
regularly scheduled workweek, you are paid at your rate of basic pay plus a Sunday
premium of 25% of your basic rate for each hour of Sunday work which is not overtime
(i.e. occasional work on Sunday outside the normal tour of duty is considered
overtime work).

HAZARDOUS PAY DIFFERENTIAL: An 8 percent differential is applicable to employees
employed in a position that represents a high degree of hazard when working with or

Page 7



Wage Determination 05-2570.txt
in close proximity to ordinance, explosives, and incendiary materials.  This
includes work such as screening, blending, dying, mixing, and pressing of sensitive
ordance, explosives, and pyrotechnic compositions such as lead azide, black powder
and photoflash powder.  All dry-house activities involving propellants or 
explosives.
  Demilitarization, modification, renovation, demolition, and maintenance operations
on sensitive ordnance, explosives and incendiary materials.  All operations
involving regrading and cleaning of artillery ranges.

A 4 percent differential is applicable to employees employed in a position that
represents a low degree of hazard when working with, or in close proximity to
ordance, (or employees possibly adjacent to) explosives and incendiary materials
which involves potential injury such as laceration of hands, face, or arms of the
employee engaged in the operation,  irritation of the skin, minor burns and the
like; minimal damage to immediate or adjacent work area or equipment being used.
All operations involving, unloading, storage, and hauling of ordance, explosive, and
incendiary ordnance material other than small arms ammunition.  These differentials
are only applicable to work that has been specifically designated by the agency for
ordance, explosives, and incendiary material differential pay.

** UNIFORM ALLOWANCE **

If employees are required to wear uniforms in the performance of this contract
(either by the terms of the Government contract, by the employer, by the state or
local law, etc.), the cost of furnishing such uniforms and maintaining (by
laundering or dry cleaning) such uniforms is an expense that may not be borne by an
employee where such cost reduces the hourly rate below that required by the wage
determination. The Department of Labor will accept payment in accordance with the
following standards as compliance:

The contractor or subcontractor is required to furnish all employees with an
adequate number of uniforms without cost or to reimburse employees for the actual
cost of the uniforms.  In addition, where uniform cleaning and maintenance is made
the responsibility of the employee, all contractors and subcontractors subject to
this wage determination shall (in the absence of a bona fide collective bargaining
agreement providing for a different amount, or the furnishing of contrary
affirmative proof as to the actual cost), reimburse all employees for such cleaning
and maintenance at a rate of $3.35 per week (or $.67 cents per day).  However, in
those instances where the uniforms furnished are made of "wash and wear"
materials, may be routinely washed and dried with other personal garments, and do
not require any special treatment such as dry cleaning, daily washing, or commercial
laundering in order to meet the cleanliness or appearance standards set by the terms
of the Government contract, by the contractor, by law, or by the nature of the work,
there is no requirement that employees be reimbursed for uniform maintenance costs.

The duties of employees under job titles listed are those described in the
"Service Contract Act Directory of Occupations", Fifth Edition, April 2006,
unless otherwise indicated. Copies of the Directory are available on the Internet. A
links to the Directory may be found on the WHD home page at http://www.dol.
gov/esa/whd/ or through the Wage Determinations On-Line (WDOL) Web site at
http://wdol.gov/.

REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION OF ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE RATE {Standard Form
1444 (SF 1444)}

Conformance Process:

The contracting officer shall require that any class of service employee which is
not listed herein and which is to be employed under the contract (i.e., the work to
be performed is not performed by any classification listed in the wage
determination), be classified by the contractor so as to provide a reasonable
relationship (i.e., appropriate level of skill comparison) between such unlisted
classifications and the classifications listed in the wage determination.  Such

Page 8



Wage Determination 05-2570.txt
conformed classes of employees shall be paid the monetary wages and furnished the
fringe benefits as are determined.  Such conforming process shall be initiated by
the contractor prior to the performance of contract work by such unlisted class(es)
of employees.  The conformed classification, wage rate, and/or fringe benefits shall
be retroactive to the commencement date of the contract. {See Section 4.6 (C)(vi)}
When multiple wage determinations are included in a contract, a separate SF 1444
should be prepared for each wage determination to which a class(es) is to be
conformed.

The process for preparing a conformance request is as follows:

1) When preparing the bid, the contractor identifies the need for a conformed
occupation(s) and computes a proposed rate(s).

2) After contract award, the contractor prepares a written report listing in order
proposed classification title(s), a Federal grade equivalency (FGE) for each
proposed classification(s), job description(s), and rationale for proposed wage
rate(s), including information regarding the agreement or disagreement of the
authorized representative of the employees involved, or where there is no authorized
representative, the employees themselves.  This report should be submitted to the
contracting officer no later than 30 days after such unlisted class(es) of employees
performs any contract work.

3) The contracting officer reviews the proposed action and promptly submits a report
of the action, together with the agency's recommendations and pertinent
information including the position of the contractor and the employees, to the Wage
and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor,
for review.  (See section 4.6(b)(2) of Regulations 29 CFR Part 4).

4) Within 30 days of receipt, the Wage and Hour Division approves, modifies, or
disapproves the action via transmittal to the agency contracting officer, or
notifies the contracting officer that additional time will be required to process
the request.

5) The contracting officer transmits the Wage and Hour decision to the contractor.

6) The contractor informs the affected employees.

Information required by the Regulations must be submitted on SF 1444 or bond paper.

When preparing a conformance request, the "Service Contract Act Directory of
Occupations" (the Directory) should be used to compare job definitions to insure
that duties requested are not performed by a classification already listed in the
wage determination.  Remember, it is not the job title, but the required tasks that
determine whether a class is included in an established wage determination.
Conformances may not be used to artificially split, combine, or subdivide
classifications listed in the wage determination.

Page 9



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Nov. 17, 2015 
Subject: Second Amendment w/CHC 
Prepared by: Lisa Small        
Reviewed by:  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 
Per Resolution 2014-173 dated February 25, 2014, the Board of Benton County Commissioners 
awarded the agreement to Correctional Healthcare Companies, Inc. to provide quality health care 
services to inmates and detainees of the Benton County Jail. 
  
Per Resolution 2014-844 dated November 4, 2014, the First Amendment to said Agreement was 
necessary as both parties wished to amend Exhibit B of the Agreement relating to the Electronic Medical 
Data Management, Paragraph 3.4.2, and Paragraph 12.11 of the Agreement, with all other provisions of 
the Agreement remaining in full force and effect. 
 
The attached Second Amendment to said Agreement is necessary to replace Exhibit A with the revised 
Exhibit A – Staffing Matrix as the Sheriff and CHC assigned different hours as allowed in Section 2 – 
STAFFING HOURS of the Agreement.  There is no cost associated with the revised staffing hours and 
the revised hours shall be effective as of November 1, 2015.  
 
Though the Sheriff and CHC are authorized to revise the staffing hours, the attached Resolution is to 
inform the Board of Commissioners of the Second Amendment to the Agreement and reflect the change 
in the revised Exhibit A for the record.  
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Second Amendment to the Agreement between Benton County 
and Correctional Healthcare Companies, Inc., replacing Exhibit A with the revised Exhibit A – Staffing 
Matrix attached hereto, effective November 1, 2015 that was signed by the Benton County Sheriff and 
Correctional Healthcare Companies, Inc. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact with this Amendment.  
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda 

mf
Text Box
q. Amended Agreement w/Correctional Healthcare Companies, Inc. for Health Care Services



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH 
CORRECTIONAL HEALTHCARE COMPANIES, INC. (CHC) TO PROVIDE QUALITY 
HEALTH CARE SERVICES TO INMATES AND DETAINEES OF THE BENTON COUNTY 
JAIL LOCATED IN KENNEWICK, WA  
  
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2014-173 dated February 25, 2014, the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners awarded the agreement to Correctional Healthcare Companies, Inc. to provide 
quality health care services to inmates and detainees of the Benton County Jail; and  
  
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2014-844 dated November 4, 2014, the First Amendment to said 
Agreement was necessary as both parties wished to amend Exhibit B of the Agreement relating 
to the Electronic Medical Data Management, Paragraph 3.4.2, and Paragraph 12.11 of the 
Agreement, with all other provisions of the Agreement remaining in full force and effect; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Second Amendment to said Agreement is necessary as Exhibit A shall be 
replaced with revised Exhibit A – Staffing Matrix attached hereto, with no costs associated with 
the revised staffing hours and effective November 1, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Section 2.0, STAFFING HOURS of the Agreement, “upon written agreement of 
the Sheriff and CHC, staff may be assigned hours different from those reflected in Exhibit A to 
provide shift coverage as necessary based on operational needs to provide health care services 
under the agreement”; and  
  
WHEREAS, this Resolution is to inform the Board of Commissioners of the attached Second 
Amendment and reflect the change in the revised Exhibit A for the record; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
concurs with the Second Amendment to the Agreement between Benton County and 
Correctional Healthcare Companies, Inc., replacing Exhibit A with the revised Exhibit A – 
Staffing Matrix attached hereto, effective November 1, 2015 that was signed by the Benton 
County Sheriff and Correctional Healthcare Companies, Inc.  
 
 
Dated this ____________ day of __________________, 2015 
 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 

         
             

                Member 
          

 
             

                Member 
Attest:  

                       Clerk of the Board                                                                    Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 

Original: BCSO 
cc: Auditor; PA; CHC   L. Small  







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Nov. 17, 2015      
Subject: Contract with A-Jacks 

Auto Services & 
Towing, LLC 

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
In previous years the Sheriff’s Office has contracted with more than one towing company for evidentiary 
vehicle tows and disabled county vehicles tows in the event a problem arises where one company is 
unavailable for timely service.  
 
A-Jacks Auto Services & Towing, LLC opened a new business after Action Auto Services LLC, doing 
business as Action Towing of Kennewick went out of business.  
 
The Sheriff’s Office recommends entering into a contract for the calendar year of 2016 and 2017 with A-
Jacks Auto Services & Towing, LLC for as needed towing services.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Personal Service Contract between Benton County and A-Jacks Auto 
Service & Towing, LLC for a contract commencing upon signature of both parties and expiring December 
31, 2017.  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
A total contract amount not to exceed $10,000 including WSST. Said expenditures shall be paid out Dept. 
121 with no supplement needed.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

mf
Text Box
r. Contract w/A-Jacks Auto Services & Towing LLC for Vehicle Tows



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF A PERSONAL SERVICE CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY 
AND A-JACKS AUTO SERVICES & TOWING, LLC FOR EVIDENTIARY VEHICLE TOWS 
AND TOWS OF DISABLED COUNTY VEHICLES  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-677, Section 4.0 Services “the County need not advertise or 
follow a formal competitive bidding procedure for service contracts, but rather the county may 
instead evaluate and utilize the procedures it deems best under the individual circumstances in 
order to obtain services of the highest quality at the lowest cost; and  
  
WHEREAS, in previous years the Sheriff’s Office has contracted with more than one towing 
company for evidentiary vehicle tows and disabled county vehicles tows in the event a problem 
arises where one company is unavailable for timely service; and  
 
WHEREAS, A-Jacks Auto Services & Towing, LLC opened a new business after Action Auto 
Services LLC, doing business as Action Towing of Kennewick went out of business; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office recommends entering into a contract for the calendar year of 
2016 and 2017 with A-Jacks Auto Services & Towing, LLC; NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners concurs with the 
recommendation and hereby awards the personal service contract to A-Jacks Auto Services & 
Towing, LLC for evidentiary vehicle tows and disabled county vehicle tows for a contract amount 
not to exceed $10,000 including WSST; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached contract shall commence upon signature of both 
parties and shall terminate December 31, 2017. 
 
 
 
Dated this ___________ day of ____________________, 2015 
 
 
 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 

         
             

                Member 
          

 
             

                Member 
Attest:  

                       Clerk of the Board                                                   Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
 of Benton County, Washington 

Original: BCSO 
cc: Auditor; S. Araiza; A-Jacks Auto Services   Small  



































mf
Text Box
s. Line Item Transfer, fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120





mf
Text Box
t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121





mf
Text Box
u. Proclamation for National Adoption Day





mf
Text Box
v. Letter to Dept of Energy re PILT









mf
Text Box
w. Agreement Extension w/Master’s Touch, LLC for Property Tax Statements











 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 11.17.15       
Subject: Refund, 

Cancellations, 
Corrections of 
Tax Rolls  

Prepared by:          Erhiza Rivera  
Reviewed by: Duane Davidson   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract              _____ 
Pass Resolution                __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda            __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Ordinarily, under Washington Law: 

 A claim for property tax refund under 84.69 RCW must be filed with the County Treasurer within three years of 
the due date of the payment sought to be refunded. 

 A proceeding for a cancellation, reduction, correction, or refund of property taxes under RCW 84.68.110 
through 84.68.150 must be filed with the County Assessor within three years of which the tax became payable 
or purported to become payable. 

 A manifest error cancellation or correction by the County Assessor or County Treasurer under RCW 84.48.065 
may not be made for any period more than three years preceding the year in which the error is discovered. 

 
 
SUMMARY 
Recent legislation has amended RCW 84.69.030, RCW 84.68.150, and RCW 84.48.065 permitting refunds, 
cancellations, or corrections of the tax rolls for a period beyond three years if authorized by the County Legislative 
Authority. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Board of County Commissioners approve the Resolution to maintain the time periods for 
cancellations, reductions, corrections, and refunds provided for in RCW 84.69.030, RCW 84.68.150, and RCW 
84.48.065 to three years. 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
This would continue the current policy for time periods for cancellations, reductions, corrections, and refunds provided 
for in RCW 84.69.030, RCW 84.68.150, and RCW 84.48.065 to no more than three years. 
 
 
 
 
MOTION 
N/A  
 

mf
Text Box
x. Authority for Refunds/Cancellations/Corrections of Tax Rolls Outside of Ordinary TimeLimits



 Orig: Civil                                                                                                                                                                                        R. Hay 

 cc: Duane Davidson; Bill Spencer; David Sparks; Reid Hay    1 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF THE DISCRETION OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY TO AUTHORIZE 
REFUNDS OR CANCELLATIONS OR CORRECTIONS OF THE TAX ROLLS OUTSIDE OF THE 
ORDINARY TIME LIMITS. 
 
WHEREAS, ordinarily in order to be timely under Washington law a claim for a property tax refund under 
84.69 RCW must be filed with the county treasurer within three years of the due date of the payment sought 
to refunded,  and 
 
WHEREAS, ordinarily in order to be timely under Washington law a proceeding for a cancellation, reduction, 
correction, or refund of property taxes under RCW 84.68.110 through RCW 84.68.150 must be filed with 
the county assessor within three years of year in which the tax became payable or purported to become 
payable,  and 
 
WHEREAS, ordinarily a manifest error cancellation or correction by the county assessor or county treasurer 
under RCW 84.48.065 may not be made for any period more than three years preceding the year in which 
the error is discovered, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature has recently amended RCW 84.69.030 to permit refunds on 
claims filed more than three years after the due date of the payment sought to be refunded if the claim 
arises from taxes paid as the result of a manifest error in a description of property; but only if such an 
extension of time is authorized by the county legislative authority, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature has recently amended RCW 84.68.150 to permit  petitions 
for cancellation or reduction of assessment or correction of tax rolls and the refund of taxes under RCW 
84.68.110 through RCW 84.68.150 to be considered even if filed more than three years after the year in 
which the tax became payable, or purported to become payable, if the reduction or correction is the result 
of a manifest error and if the county legislative authority also authorizes the extension of time to file the 
petition, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature has recently amended RCW 84.48.065 to permit the county 
assessor or county treasurer to issue a manifest error cancellation or correction for a period more than 
three years preceding the year in which the error is discovered, but only if authorized by the county 
legislative authority, and 
 
WHEREAS, if the Benton County Board of Commissioners were to make use of the additional authority 
granted by the legislature to extend the time periods for cancellations, reductions, corrections, and refunds 
as now provided for in RCW 84.69.030, RCW 84.68.150, and RCW 84.48.065, it could have the effect of 
undermining the certainty, predictability, and finality of the process by which property taxes are collected 
and corrections and refund requests are resolved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that it is in all cases the policy of Benton County to not extend, or 
authorize to extend, the time limits otherwise provided in RCW 84.69.030, RCW 84.68.150, or RCW 
84.48.065, for the cancellation, reduction, correction, or refund of property taxes, for corrections of 
assessments or of the tax rolls, or for petitions or claims seeking such cancellations, reductions, corrections, 
or refunds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Orig: Civil                                                                                                                                                                                        R. Hay 

 cc: Duane Davidson; Bill Spencer; David Sparks; Reid Hay    2 
 

Dated this __________________ day of __________________, 2015. 
 
 

 ___________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 

 
 

 ___________________________ 
 Member 

 
 

 __________________________ 
 Member 

 
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
 
Attest....................................................... 
                     Clerk of the Board 
 



mf
Text Box
y. Interagency Agreement w/Washington State University Extension



















 cc: Personnel, Commissioners’ Office, Auditor’s Office                                           Prepared by: K. Ainsworth 

 

RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING TRI-CITIES MONITORING INC. A PERSONAL SERVICE 
CONTRACT FOR COURT SECURITY SERVICES AT THE BENTON COUNTY COURTHOUSE, 
PROSSER, WASHINGTON AND THE BENTON COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER, KENNEWICK, 
WASHINGTON. 
 
WHEREAS, resolution 2012-677, “The County need not advertise or follow a formal competitive bidding 
procedure for service contracts (except for architectural, engineering, or design services), but rather the 
County may instead evaluate and utilize the procedures it deems best under the individual circumstances 
in order to obtain services of the highest quality at the lowest cost; and 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County entered into an agreement with J & J Security and Transport, Inc. to provide 
security services; and 

 
WHEREAS, J and J Security and Transport Inc. has notified Benton County that they will no longer be 
providing security services effective November 15, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, J and J Security and Transport Inc. has indicated that Tri-Cities Monitoring Inc. will be taking 
over the services formally managed by J and J Security and Transport Inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel department recommends entering into a six month contract with Tri-Cities 
Monitoring Inc., commencing November 15, 2015 and terminating on May 31, 2016; and 
  
WHEREAS, with the execution of the contract, Tri-Cities Monitoring Inc. will provide a law enforcement 
officer commissioned to have arrest authority to perform security services and maintain a safe work 
environment for Courthouse staff and the general public that attend or are in the vicinity of the Benton 
County Superior Court domestic docket at the Prosser Courthouse and the vicinity of the Benton County 
Superior Court Legal Financial Obligation (LFO) docket, at the Benton County Justice Center in 
Kennewick; NOW, THEREFORE 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, the 
Board concurs with the Personnel department’s recommendation and hereby awards the personal service 
contract to Tri-Cities Monitoring Inc. in the amount of $26.85 per hour for one commissioned law 
enforcement officer to provide security services to be performed at the Prosser Courthouse and 
Kennewick Justice Center; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman is authorized to sign the attached personal service 
contract; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the attached contract commences on November 15, 2015 and 
expires May 31, 2016 
 
 
Dated this __________________ day of ________________, 2015. 
 

________________________                
Chairman of the Board 

 
 

________________________ 
Member 

 
 

________________________ 
Member  

               
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 

mf
Text Box
Contract w/Tri-Cities Monitoring, Inc. for Court Security Services ~ K Ainsworth



BENTON COUNTY 
PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a 
political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 Market 
Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and Tri-Cities 
Monitoring, Inc., a Washington Corporation, with its principal offices 
at 3180 W. Clearwater Ave. Suite M Kennewick, WA 99336, (hereinafter 
"CONTRACTOR"). 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1 . DURATION OF CONTRACT 

The term of this Contract shall begin November 15, 2015, and shall 
expire on May 31, 2016. The CONTRACTOR shall complete all work by the 
time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is otherwise specified, 
no later than the expiration date. 

2. SERVICES PROVIDED 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 

a. The Contractor shall provide one law enforcement officer 
commissioned to have arrest authority at the Prosser Courthouse 
to perform security services and maintain a safe work environment 
for courthouse staff and the general public that attend or are in 
the vicinity of the Benton County Superior Court domestic docket 
every Thursday at the Prosser Courthouse at 620 Market Street, 
Prosser, WA from 8 a.m. until completion of the docket as 
determined by the presiding judge. Benton County Superior Court 
Prosser Clerk's Office will notify by phone the contract 
representative either in person or by leaving a message at 
(509) 392-8011 twenty-four (24) hours in advance if there is no 
Superior Court domestic docket. If the required notice is not 
given, the County agrees to pay the Contractor for one hour of 
service. 

The Contractor shall provide one law enforcement officer 
commissioned to have arrest authority at the Benton County 
Justice Center to perform security services and maintain a safe 
work environment for the Benton County Justice Center staff and 
the general public that attend or are in the vicinity of the 
Benton County Superior Court Legal Financial Obligation (LFO) 
docket once a week at the Benton County Justice Center, 7122 West 
Okanogan Place, Kennewick, WA from 1 p.m. until the completion of 
the docket as determined by the Superior Court Clerk. The Benton 
County Superior Court Clerk's Office will notify by phone the 
contract representative either in person or by leaving a message 
at (509)392-8011 twenty-four (24) hours in advance if there is no 

- 1 -



e. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or any exhibits or 
attachments hereto, the CONTRACTOR will not be paid for any 
billings or invoices presented for services rendered prior to the 
execution of this Contract or after its termination. 

5. AMENDMENTS AND CHANGES IN WORK 

a. No amendment or modification shall be made to this Contract, 
unless set forth in a written Contract Amendment signed by both 
parties. Work under a Contract Amendment shall not proceed until 
the Contract Amendment is duly executed by the COUNTY. 

6. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 
COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and 
against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability, loss, 
expenses, damages, and judgments of any nature whatsoever, 
including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in defense 
thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to persons or 
damage to property or business, which are caused in whole or in 
part by any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, of 
CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors', which arise in connection with 
the work performed under this Contract, or are caused or 
occasioned in whole or in part by reason of the presence of the 
CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors or their property upon or in the 
proximity of the property of the County. PROVIDED, that the 
CONTRACTOR'S obligation hereunder shall not extend to injury, 
sickness, death or damage caused by or arising out of the sole 
negligence of the COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees or 
agents. 

b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY, its officers, 
officials, employees and agents by any employee of the 
CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be 
liable, the indemnification obligation under this Section shall 
not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type 
of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the 
CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under Workers Compensation acts, 
disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts, it being 
clearly agreed and understood by the parties hereto that the 
CONTRACTOR expressly waives any immunity the CONTRACTOR might 
have had under such laws, including but not limited to Title 51 
of the Revised Code of Washington. By executing this Contract, 
the CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been 
mutually negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of 
this Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any 
contract the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 
performing work hereunder. CONTRACTOR'S obligations under this 
Section [7] shall survive termination and expiration of this 

- 3 -



Contract. 

c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but are not 
limited to, investigating, adjusting and defending all claims 
alleging loss from action, error or omission, or breach of any 
common law, statutory or other delegated duty by the CONTRACTOR, 
the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents or subcontractors. 

7 . INSURANCE 

a. Professional Liability Insurance: Prior to the start of work · 
under this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall secure and maintain at 
its own expense Professional Liability Insurance appropriate to 
the CONTRACTOR'S profession and shall be written subject to 
limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) each 
claim and in the aggregate. Such insurance will be provided by an 
insurance carrier with a Best's Rating of not less than A-VII. 

The coverage shall apply to liability for a professional error r 
act or omission arising out of the scope of the CONTRACTOR'S 
services defined in this Contract. Coverage shall not exclude 
hazards related to the work rendered as part of the Contract or 
within the scope of the CONTRACTOR'S services as defined by this 
Contract. If the policy is claims made, the retroactive date 
shall be prior to or coincident with the effective date of this 
Contract. CONTRACTOR is required to maintain claims made 
professional liability insurance for a minimum of 36 months after 
the effective date of termination or completion of this Contract. 
If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with 
another claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to 
the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase 
"extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of 36 months after 
the completion of work. CONTRACTOR shall annually provide COUNTY 
with proof of all such insurance. 

b. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State of 
Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations. Prior 
to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of CONTRACTOR and 
employees of any subcontractor or sub-subcontractor. Coverage 
shall include bodily injury (including death) by accident or 
disease, which arises out of or in connection with the 
performance of this Contract. CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of 
its certificate of coverage from the Department of Labor and 
Industries prior to commencement of work. Except as prohibited by 
law, CONTRACTOR waives all rights of subrogation against the 
COUNTY for recovery of damages to the extent they are covered by 
workers compensation and employers liability. 

If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 
comply with all State of Washington workers compensation statutes 
and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is required by law to 

- 4 -



provide benefits to or obtain coverage for such employees, 
CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. Indemnity shall include 
all fines, payment of benefits to CONTRACTOR or subcontractor 
employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and the cost 
of effecting coverage on behalf of such employees. Any amount 
owed to COUNTY by CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement 
may be deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR 
for performance of this Contract. 

c. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance: 
Prior to the start of work under this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall 
maintain commercial general liability coverage (policy form 
CGOOOl or equivalent) to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims for 
wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this 
Contract by CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly employed by or 
contracting with CONTRACTOR. The minimum commercial general 
liability insurance limits shall be as follows: 

$2,000,000 General Aggregate 
$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

The commercial general liability policy will contain an 
endorsement naming the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 
officials, employees and agents as an Additional Insured and an 
endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR's commercial 
general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, 
with any other insurance maintained by the COUNTY. 

The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability coverage 
that does not exclude any activity to be performed in fulfillment 
of this Contract and does not exclude liability pursuant to the 
indemnification requirement under Section [7]. CONTRACTOR'S 
commercial general liability policy shall provide cross liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the 
limits of insurance and any rights or duties specifically 
assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this 
insurance applies as if each named insured were the only named 
insured, and separat ely to each insured against whom claims are 
made or suit is brought. 

CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 
Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 

$1,000,000 Each Accident 
$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

d. Other Insurance Provisions: 

- 5 -



1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be 
primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance 
programs covering the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. CONTRACTOR'S 
liability insurance policies must be endorsed to show this 
primary coverage. Any insurance, self-insured retention, 
deductible or risk retention maintained or participated in by 
the COUNTY shall be excess and not contributory to 
CONTRACTOR'S insurance policies. 

2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall contain no 
special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the 
COUNTY as an additional insured. 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 
policies shall not affect coverage provided to the COUNTY, its 
officers, officials, employees or agents. 

4. The CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except 
with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as insureds 
under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and 
endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverage for 
subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements 
stated herein. 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage 
required by this Contract are not intended to be an indication 
of exposure nor are they limitations on indemnification. If 
the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits than the minimums 
required in this contract, the COUNTY shall be entitled to 
coverage for the higher limits maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in force 
from the time services commence until services are completed. 
Certificates, policies, and endorsements expiring before 
completion of services shall be promptly replaced. CONTRACTOR 
is required to maintain claims made professional liability · 
insurance for a minimum of 36 months after the effective date 
of termination or completion of this Contract. All liability 
insurance required under this Contract, except for 
professional liability under Section [S(a)], shall be written 
on an Occurrence Policy form. 

8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to 
each insurance policy maintained under this Contract. When 
required by an insurer, or if a policy condition does not 
permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a pre-loss agreement to waive 
subrogation without an endorsement, then CONTRACTOR agrees to 
notify the insurer and obtain such endorsement. This 

- 6 -



requirement shall not apply to any policy which includes a 
condition expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the 
insured or which voids coverage should the CONTRACTOR enter 
into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre-loss basis. 

9. Compensation and/ or payments due to CONTRACTOR under this 
Agreement are expressly conditioned upon CONTRACTOR'S strict 
compliance with all insurance requirements. Payment to 
CONTRACTOR may be suspended in the event of non-compliance. 
Upon receipt of evidence of CONTRACTOR'S compliance, such 
payments not otherwise subject to withholding or set-off will 
be released to CONTRACTOR. 

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers: 

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by 
companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State 
of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A-VII or 
better in the most recently published edition of Best's Reports. 
Any exception to this requirement must be reviewed and approved 
in writing by the Benton County Personnel Manager. If an insurer 
is not admitted to do business within Washington State, all 
insurance policies and procedures for issuing the insurance 
policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284-15 WAC. 

1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other than 
Professional Liability, Auto Liability and Workmen's 
Compensation, shall specifically include the COUNTY, its 
elected officials, employees and volunteers as an "Additional 
Insured" by way of endorsement and shall not be reduced or 
canceled without thirty (30) days written prior notice to the 
COUNTY. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and 
agents shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall 
not contribute to it. 

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, 
attached, are to be provided to the 
Representative referenced in Section 4. 

with endorsements 
County's Contract 

3. All written notices under this Section [8] and notice of 
cancellation or change of required insurance coverages shall 
be mailed to the COUNTY's Contract Representative referenced 
in Section 4. 

4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any and 
all insurance policies specified in this Contract upon request 
of the Benton County Personnel Manager at the following 
address: Benton County Personnel Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan 
Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336. 

8 . TERMINATION 

- 7 -



a. The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part 
whenever the COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion, that such 
termination is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The COUNTY 
may terminate this Contract upon giving ten (10) days written 
notice by certified mail to the CONTRACTOR . In that event, the 
COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for all cost incurred by the 
CONTRACTOR in performing the Contract up to the date of such 
notice. Payment shall be made in accordance with the Compensation 
Section of this Contract. 

b. In the event that funding for this project is withdrawn, reduced 
or limited in any way after the effective date of this Contract, 
the COUNTY may summarily terminate this Contract notwithstanding 
any other termination provision in this Contract. Termination 
under this paragraph shall be effective upon the date specified 
in the written notice of termination sent by COUNTY to the 
CONTRACTOR. After the effective date, no charges incurred under 
this Contract shall be allowed . 

c. If the CONTRACTOR breaches any of its obligations hereunder, and 
fails to cure the breach within ten (10) days of written notice 
to do so by the COUNTY, the COUNTY may immediately terminate this 
Contract by so notifying the CONTRACTOR, in which case the COUNTY 
shall pay the CONTRACTOR only for the costs of services accepted 
by the COUNTY, in accordance with the Compensation Section of 
this Contract. Upon such termination, the COUNTY, at its 
discretion, may obtain performance of the work elsewhere, and the 
CONTRACTOR shall bear all costs and expenses incurred by the 
COUNTY in completing the work and all damage sustained by the 
COUNTY by reason of the CONTRACTOR'S breach. 

9. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using 
only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations and 
duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be 
assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or firm 
without the prior express written consent of the COUNTY. 

b. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed to 
pay any company, person, partnership, or firm, other than a bona 
fide employee working exclusively for CONTRACTOR, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 
making of this Contract. 

10. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

The parties agree that the 
waiver of any provision(s) 
waiver of such provision(s) 

excuse or forgiveness of performance or 
of this Contract does not constitute a 
or future performance, or prejudice the 

- 8 -



right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of this 
Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision (s} of this 
Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or 
inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 

11. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the CONTRACTOR as 
an independent contractor and not as an agent, employee or 
servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR specifically has the right 
to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S own activities in providing 
the agreed services in accordance with the specifications set out 
in this Contract. 

b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for this 
Contract is set forth in Section [5] of this Contract, and 
neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to any 
COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation pay, 
holiday pay, sick leave pay, medical, dental, or other insurance 
benefits, fringe benefits, or any other rights or privileges 
afforded to COUNTY employees. 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete responsibility 
and control over all of its subcontractors, employees, agents, 
and representatives. No subcontractor, employee, agent, or 
representative of the CONTRACTOR shall be or deem to be or act or 
purport to act as an employee, agent, or representative of the 
COUNTY. 

d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or payments 
required by federal, state or local law which are now or may be 
enacted during the term of this Contract. 

e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its employees 
or agents from their assignment to perform services under this 
Contract upon receipt of a written request to do so from the 
COUNTY'S contract representative or designee. 

12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, rules and regulations in performing this Contract. 

13. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 

The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records of 
the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. The 
CONTRACTOR shall keep all records required by this Contract for six 
(6} years after termination of this Contract for audit purposes. 

14. NONDISCRIMINATION 

- 9 -

., 



The CONTRACTOR, its assignees, delegates, 
discriminate against any person in the 
obligations hereunder on the basis of age, 
orientation, race, creed, religion, color, 
discharged veteran or military status, 
protected status. 

15. DISPUTES 

or subcontractors shall not 
performance of any of its 
sex, marital status, sexual 
national origin, honorably 
disability, or any other 

Disputes between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, arising under and by 
virtue of this Contract, shall be brought to the attention of the 
COUNTY at the earliest possible time in order that such matters may be 
settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. Any dispute 
relating to the quality or acceptability of performance and/or 
compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the COUNTY'S 
Contract Representative or designee. All rulings, orders, instructions 
and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract Representative shall be final 
and conclusive, subject to CONTRACTOR'S right to seek judicial relief. 

16. CONFIDENTIALITY 

The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and their employees 
shall maintain the confidentiality of all information provided by the 
COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of this Contract, 
except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY or an order 
entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The CONTRACTOR shall 
promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any judicial proceeding 
seeking disclosure of such information. 

17. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

a. This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been made 
and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is agreed by 
each party hereto that this Contract shall be governed by the 
laws of the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation 
and performance. 

b. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding arising 
out of this Contract shall be instituted and maintained only in 
any of the courts of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, 
Washington. 

18. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR each 
bind themselves, their partners, successors, executors, 
administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract and to 
the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of such other 
party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 

19. SEVERABILITY 

- 10 -



a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or 
provision of this Contract to be illegal, or invalid in whole or 
in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be 
affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall be 
construed and enforced as if this Contract did not contain the 
particular provision held to be invalid. 

b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in 
conflict with any statutory provision of the State of Washington, 
said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in conflict 
therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform to such 
statutory provision. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of its 
terms and conditions. Any oral or written representations or 
understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 
excluded. 

21. NOTICES 

Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 
party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the addresses set out in the Contract Representatives 
Section of this Contract. Notice may also be given by facsimile with 
the original to follow by regular mail. Notice shall be deemed to be 
given three days following the date of mailing or immediately, if 
personally served. For service by facsimile, service shall be 
effective at the beginning of the next working day. 

22. SURVIVABILITY 

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 
survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall so 
survive. These terms include, but are not limited to, indemnification 
provisions (Sections [7] and [17]); extended reporting period 
requirements for professional liability insurance (Section [B(a)]); 
inspection and keeping of records and books (Section [14]); litigation 
hold notice (Section [26]); Public Records Act (Section [27]) and 
confidentiality (Section [19]). 

23. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 

In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 
increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 
records kept by CONTRACTOR pursuant to Section [14] of this agreement 
may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written notice to 
CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the CONTRACTOR to "hold" 
such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR receives such written 
notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all directions therein whether or 

- 11 -

'I 
•I 



not such written notice is received at a time when a Contract between 
CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in force. Such directions will include, 
but will not be limited to, instructions to suspend the six (6) year 
purge schedule as set out above in Section [14) . 

24. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 
entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 
Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 
that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 
required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records actually in its 
possession or deemed by judicial determination to be in its 
possession, which may include records provided to the COUNTY by 
CONTRACTOR that CONTRACTOR might regard as confidential or 
proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR provides any records to the 
COUNTY that it regards as confidential or proprietary, it agrees to 
conspicuously mark the records as such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives 
any and all claims or causes of action for any injury it may suffer by 
virtue of COUNTY'S release of records covered under the Public Records 
Act. COUNTY agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR 
in a timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 
which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR as 
confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a judicial 
order of protection if necessary. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Contract to be signed 
by their duly constituted legal representatives and is effective 
November 15, 2015. 

Dated: ______________ _ Dated: 11 lttr It!>"" 
r 1 

Benton County Board of Commissioners Tri-Cities Monitoring, Inc. 

Chairman 

Member 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, 
Washington. 

Attest : __ ~~--~~--~--~--
Clerk of the Board 

Title: 

decK~ IJ · !Y7tA.. a. 11 ~ so f\..-
PRINTED AME ~ 

Deputy Prosecut ing Attorney 

- 12 -


	CA - Facilities d.pdf
	2nd Amendment Resolution
	Second Contract Amendment
	Signed Second Amendment-Benton County Animal Control Fac  2015
	Animal Control Quote

	CA - Sheriff p.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY
	Contract Mod 0023 RESOLUTION .pdf
	Chairman of the Board

	Agenda action sheet for 0023.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY


	CA - Sheriff p.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY
	Contract Mod 0023 RESOLUTION .pdf
	Chairman of the Board

	Agenda action sheet for 0023.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY


	CA - Sheriff q.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	Second Contract Amendment Resolution.pdf
	Chairman of the Board


	CA - Sheriff r.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY
	Contract Resolution.pdf
	Chairman of the Board

	Contract Resolution.pdf
	Chairman of the Board


	CA - Treasurer x.pdf
	Agenda Action Item-Comm Cover Page to Resolution
	Appeal resolution




